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Like trails and· r-oads, the f1rst te:lephones into sections 
of the Forests were built to serve the mining industry. 

A grounded circuit was in use from C-~uncil to Bear and 
Cup~um some time before 1~00- A spur line also went fro·m 
Cuprum to. Helena and from there down Ha-Iey Ridge to the 
Red Ledge Mine. Telephone service over this line· was · 
available to both the B~ar and Hbrnet Ranger Stations 
in 1906'. A record o-f · when the Weiser Forest acquired this 
system can no longer be found. It was probably· soon after 
1906 because w·ith the mining activity dying out, the local 
people left in the c·ountry we-re-- no -doubt glad for the 
Forest Service to take over the responsibility. It is 
understood· that the line was re-built by the Forest Service 
from· Hornet to Bear in 191?-. 

Photographs in the file show that the line to Pollock Look-
0ut was first buiit in 1912 and one from Hornet over Cuddy 
Mountain to Brownlee and Mann Creek was built about a year 
or two ear lier. 

By 1930, the main telephone lines on the Weiser Forest 
were as follows: · Council-Cuprum line went via Bear Ranger 
Station .and· over the hill to Cuprum. From Bear, a spur 
line went to Smith Mountain Lookout and from there to 
Black Lake and Jackley Lookout. A spur from Cuprum was 
later built· to Horse Mountain, Kinney Point, do-wn Grassy 
Ridge and across Shake River t ·o McGraw Lookout on the· 
Wall"owa Forest. 

Price Valley Ranger Station had a· line to - Tamarack, where 
it could be switched on to commerctal faci-I-ities. 

A main system had· a-Isa been built from Council up Mill 
Creek to Squaw r ·1at Ranger Station. and on to No Business 
Lookout·. A spur line · ran from Squaw Flat to Cuuhcil 
Mountain Looko.ut. At N·o Business, service could be switched 
on to the Asso·ciation I s Red Ridge line to - McC-all. The· 
main line went from No Business across Cougar Basin to 
Mica Saddle and Irtdia-n Mountain Lookout; from there across 
Little Weiser River· to Mill Creek Ranger Station. At 
Mill Creek, servi~e could be- switched· to the Squaw Creek 
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line on the old Payette National Forest. In 1923 E1.mer 
Ross, who was a goo.d . hand with telephones, built -and 
installed the first swi•tchboard in the Dtspatche~t·s 
office in Council. 

Some· time between 1910 and· 1912,- . the Idaho Forest had 
telephone lines to Lake F'ork~ ·Paddy Flat via Roseberry, 
Warren, and New· .. .Mead·ows Ranger Statfons. By 1925, a- · 
line had been built to Big C~eek by the ·way. of South 
Fork, Yellow Pine, and Profile. In 1928, a line was in 
use fro·m· B'ig Creek to · Chamberlai-n. 

The main telephone ·lines that were_ in use o'n the raaho 
F·orest · in .·1930 were.: 

McCall-Warren: It was 45 miles long and was· hooked 
up t ·hrough the commercial swttchboard in McCa1i-. · 

Warren-Big Creek: This was bui·l t via South Fork 
over tlk, Summit to Big Creek - a dis~ance of ·3s- miles. 

McCal:l-Big Creek~ . It went from McCall to Lake Fork, 
South Fork, Yellow Pine and . terminated at Big Cr~ek 
a . d1·stanc-e of 82 · miles·. 

Btg ~reek-C_o.la Meadows: Thi•s line went down Big Creek, 
up.--~to · Acorn Butte Lookout, .Cold · Mountain, artd _. C·old 
Meadows. Grass Mountain Lookout was on a spur from 
Cold Meadows. 

Big Creek-Chamberlain: The route of this line was up 
Smith Creek, along the divide .to Chicken Peak Lookout 
and down Chamberlain Creek to the Chamberlain Station. 
A side spur served Sheepeater Lookout. 

There were also spur lines from Big Creek Station to all 
lookouts south of Big Creek. 

Roseberry-Reed· Ranch: This system includ·ed - spurs to 
·Boulder Lookout, Blackmare Lookout, and Eagle Rock 
Lookout. The line was built in 1927. 

McCall-New Meadows: The s.ystem also included a branch 
from-- Tho~n Cre·ek to · Brundage, Granite; and Hard Butte 
Lookouts. 

Before the Salmon River Road was built., the settlers 
along the r~ver had a line from Riggins to the Key's 
Ranch on French Creek. A line had also been constructed 
from Burgdorf to Key's Ranch, and switching facilities 
were furnished at the ranch. After the road was built, 
the CCC- crews rebuilt the line and the Forest maintained 
it until about 1956', when it was abandoned· back to the 
Salmon River residents. 
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Before the telephone line was built to Bi~ Creek, the 
Forest experimented with carrier pigeons, but had very little 
success wrth them. 

Fred Wllliams, who was the first Big Creek Ranger, reported 
that in 1920 the Forest established· the first radio stations 
one at McCall and one at Edward·sbur-g. An engineer from 
Region One by·· the name of Adams wa-s in charge of the project. 
It turned out to be a complete failure. 

In the 1940's when a large number of lookouts were be-ing 
abandoned and more radios we-re being used, miles · of telephone 
Ilnes were a-lso being abandoned. In the early 1950 1·s, 
telephone service was being replaced with VHF radio equip­
ment. The Hornet Creek line from Council to Hornet was 
so-ld to the Hornet Creek ranche-rs and the section from 
Hornet to Bear and Cuprum was sold to the people along 
the route and in Cuprum. 

Th~ .McCall-New Meadows line was sold to the Gem State 
Tel·ephone Company, as was the Forest Service line from 
McCall to Sylvan Beach along the Warren Wagon Road. 

The- first portable radios that were· successf:ully us·ed in 
the f!eld- we-re called the S.P. sets. Then came the s·.p.~. 
sets, which were very successful· and were still in use at 
certain locations after the· VHF system was well established. 
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